
           
OFFICIAL AGENDA

TUESDAY February 18, 2025
Meeting Start Time: 9:00 a.m.

Board of County Commissioners
Yellowstone County, Montana

Stillwater Building
316 N. 26th Street, Room 3108

Billings, MT
8:45 a.m. Agenda Setting 

           

Pledge to the Flag: Moment of Silence: Minutes
REGULAR AGENDA

9:00 a.m. RECOGNITION

Brent Johnson Detention Center 15 Years of Service
Bobby Wise Road 15 Years of Service
Cody Goodyear Detention Center 10 Years of Service

 

Detention Facility Promotion - Lieutenant Rickett
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON REGULAR, CONSENT AND FILED AGENDA ITEMS
 

1. PLANNING DEPARTMENT  

Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision - County Major Subdivision Preliminary Plat  
CLAIMS

 CONSENT AGENDA 

1. COMMISSIONERS  

a. Veterans Navigation Network - Request for PILT Funds  
b. MOU Between MHC and YC for Mental Health Center Services at YCDF  
c. MACo Health Care Trust Vision Retiree Coverage  
d. Board Reappointment - Pamela Ask & Terry Seiffert to Lockwood TEDD Board  
e. DBA Request for Mental Health Mill Levy Funding  
f. YSC DOC Licensing Inspection

 
 

2. COUNTY ATTORNEY  

Letter re DocuSign
 

 



           
3. FINANCE  

a. Public Safety Mental Health Mill Levy Request  
b. Finance - Request to Expend - New Phone for Purchasing Agent  
c. IT Dept - Request to Expend - New Phone for IT Assistant Director  
d. MetraPark 1st Avenue Entrance - WWC Engineering Letter of Agreement

 
 

4. METRA PARK  

Metra Trust Check Log for January 2025
 

 

5. HUMAN RESOURCES  

PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - County Attorney - 1 Appointment; District Court - 1
Appointment; Detention Facility - 1 Termination; Sheriff's Office - 1 Termination; Finance - 1
Salary & Other

 

 FILE ITEMS 

1. AUDITOR  

a. Payroll Audit - January 16 to January 31, 2025  
b. Dick Anderson Construction Change Order PC-03

 
 

2. CLERK AND RECORDER  

Board Minutes - Yellowstone Conservation District
 

 

3. EMERGENCY AND GENERAL SERVICES  

EMPG - FY24/25 Quarter 2 Reimbursement Request Submitted
 

 

4. HUMAN RESOURCES  

January 15 - January 31 Payroll Audit  

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON COUNTY BUSINESS

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: February Recognition
Submitted By: Amy Mills

TOPIC:

Brent Johnson Detention Center 15 Years of Service
Bobby Wise Road 15 Years of Service
Cody Goodyear Detention Center 10 Years of Service

BACKGROUND:
na

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
na



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: Promotion
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Detention Facility Promotion - Lieutenant Rickett
 

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
N/A



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
SUBJECT: Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision - County Major Subdivision Preliminary Plat
THROUGH:  Anna Vickers 
FROM: Dave Green

TOPIC
Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision - County Major Subdivision Preliminary Plat

INTRODUCTION
On December 2, 2024, Performance Engineering applied for preliminary major plat approval of Platinum
Commercial Park Subdivision. The subdivision will create 14 lots for commercial/industrial development.
The subject property is generally located northeast of the intersection of South 72nd Street West and
Danford Road. This parcel of land is outside county zoning. Historically, the land has been used for
farming/agriculture.

RECOMMENDATION
The Planning Board is forwarding a recommendation of conditional approval to the Board of County
Commissioners for the major preliminary plat of Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision, approve the
variance requests, and adopt the Findings of Fact as presented in the staff report.

VARIANCE REQUESTED
The applicant has requested variances from Section 4.6.B.1 and Section 4.6.B.2 of the Yellowstone
County Subdivision Regulations, which outlines connections to undeveloped/underdeveloped land
surrounding the proposed subdivisions. The maximum distance between those connections is 600 feet.
Staff is recommending approval of the variance requests. Further explanation and analysis can be found
in 'Attachment A.'

PROPOSED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Pursuant to Section 76-3-608(4), MCA, the following conditions are recommended to reasonably
minimize potential adverse impacts identified within the Findings of Fact. 

To protect public health and safety, prior to final plat approval, the applicant will receive
approval from the MDEQ for the proposed water systems, septic systems and the proposed
storm water management. The applicant will also create an RSID to maintain the community
wastewater system.

1.

2. To provide a maintenance mechanism for the new public roads within the subdivision and to
protect public health and safety, prior to final plat approval, the applicant will petition to create an
RSID for the future maintenance of the roads.
To protect public health and safety with proper fire suppression, prior to final plat approval, the
applicant will submit construction drawings of the dry hydrant system to Billings Fire Department
for review and approval. Once installed, the applicant will request Billings Fire Department test the
system to ensure it works correctly and get a sign off from Billings Fire Department. The applicant
will also create an RSID for the dry hydrant system.

3.

To minimize the effects on local service, prior to final plat approval, the applicant will coordinate
with the USPS for locating and providing the correct amount of space for safely delivering the
mail to the  lots.

4.

Prior to final plat approval, the Traffic Impact Study and any identified improvements shall
be completed and approved by the Public Works Department.

5.

Minor changes may be made in the SIA and final documents, as requested by the Planning,
Legal or Public Works Departments to clarify the documents and bring them into the standard
acceptable format.

6.

The final plat shall comply with all requirements of the Yellowstone County Subdivision
Regulations, rules, policies, and resolutions of Yellowstone County, and the laws and
Administrative Rules of the State of Montana.

7.



PROCEDURAL HISTORY
Pre-application meeting October 10, 2024
Preliminary plat application submitted to Planning Division on December 2, 2024  
Planning Board plat review meeting January 14, 2025
Planning Board public hearing meeting January 28, 2025
Preliminary plat to Board of County Commissioners, February 18, 2025  
60 working-day preliminary plat review period ends February 28, 2025

PLAT INFORMATION

General location: Northeast corner of 72nd Street South and Danford Road  
Legal Description: SE 1/4 SW 1/4 SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 25 EAST  
Owner/Subdivider: KE Construction   
Surveyor/Engineer: Performance Engineering   
Existing Zoning: Outside zoning  
Proposed Zoning: None  
Existing Land Use: Farming  
Proposed Land Use: Commercial  
Gross area: 67.311  
Net area: 54.082  
Proposed number of lots: 14  
      Max.: 5.68
      Min.: 2.63  

Parkland requirements: Parkland dedication is not required as this is a commercial subdivision.  

PLANNING BOARD PUBLIC HEARING DISCUSSION
There was a public hearing held for this proposed subdivision on January 28, 2025. At that meeting, staff
gave a brief overview of the proposed subdivision to the Planning Board and the attending public. After the
presentation, staff stood for any questions from the board. A question from Board member Bonogofsky 
was about whether there are any mechanisms to preserve farmland to keep it from being
developed.  Staff responded that with property rights, a farmer has a right to sell land and if a developer
buys it, then they have a right to develop that land. Staff further pointed out that there are requirements in
the subdivision regulations that the developer of land cannot disturb any surrounding ditches or
waterways that are used by other farmers farther down stream. But there is no mechanism that would
preserve the farmland from being developed in place in Yellowstone County. Another question was
asked by Board member Stahly about the traffic from the subdivision. Considering it is a commercial /
industrial use subdivision, will there be signage on South 72nd West to warn south-bound traffic about
truck traffic? Staff responded that the traffic study would need to identify the need for a sign. Also, the
County would have to be in agreement with that recommendation for a sign to be installed on the road. 

Taylor Kasperick from Performance Engineering stood to further answer the question about signs. He
stated that the traffic study was done basing the use on more intense traffic because they do not know
what businesses will be purchasing land in the subdivision. He pointed out that when a new lot owner
applies for an access permit they will know what the use is, and it's potential to generate traffic. If the use
is intense, the county may request a traffic study to determine if there needs to be modifications to the
access into the subdivision. Staff also shared that signs for heavy truck traffic are established through
resolution by the County Commissioners. Such signage is outside of the subdivision regulations and
would need to be determined by County Public Works and the County Commissioners. 

There were no other questions from the board. The public hearing was opened, no one from the public



stood to speak.

A motion was made by Board member Stephenson to recommend conditional approval of the
subdivision, approve the variance request, and adopt the Findings of Fact as presented in the staff
report. The motions was seconded by Board member Woods with a unanimous vote by the board to
forward the recommendation.
 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FINDINGS OF FACT
See attachment Findings of Fact

CONCLUSIONS OF FINDINGS OF FACT
See attachment Findings of Fact

RECOMMENDATION
The Planning Board is forwarding a recommendation of conditional approval to the Board of County
Commissioners for the major preliminary plat of Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision, approve the
variance requests, and adopt the Findings of Fact as presented in the staff report.

Attachments
Findings of Fact
Proposed Plat
Draft SIA
Variance requests
Attachment A - Staff variance review



 Page 1 of 5 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

The City-County Planning Division Staff has prepared the Findings of Fact for Platinum 

Commercial Park Subdivision.  These findings are based on the preliminary plat 

application and supplemental documents addressing the review criteria required by the 

Montana Subdivision and Platting Act (76-3-608, MCA) and the Yellowstone County 

Subdivision Regulations (YCSR).  

  

A.  What are the effects on agriculture, local services, the natural environment, 

wildlife and wildlife habitat and public health and safety (76-3-608 (3) (a) MCA) 

(Section 3.2 (H) (2) YCSR) 

  

1.  Effect on agriculture and agricultural water users’ facilities  

The subject property has been used for farming purposes. No water rights or shares will 

be transferred to individual lot owners. Irrigation ditches that exist on the perimeter of 

this development are for the benefit of other properties. Perimeter ditches and drains shall 

remain in place and shall not be altered by the Subdivider or subsequent owners without 

permission of said adjacent properties. There will be no effect on the water users down 

stream from this property. 

  

2.  Effect on local services 

  

a.   Water – The proposed subdivision is not located within any public water district. The 

subdivision will be served by individual wells or alternative water source as approved 

by the Montana Department of Environmental Quality, or its designee. Water systems 

will be installed meeting the requirements outlined in Section 4.9 of the Yellowstone 

County Subdivision Regulations and the MDEQ. (Condition #1) The operation and 

maintenance of approved water system will be the responsibility of individual lot owners.   

 

b. Septic - The proposed subdivision is not located within any public sewer district. The 

subdivision will be served by wastewater disposal systems as submitted to and approved 

by Montana Department of Environmental Quality. These systems shall be located and 

installed as shown on the site layout approved by Montana Department of Environmental 

Quality, or its designee. 

 

The Subdivision is proposed to be served by a community wastewater treatment system 

located on Utility Lot 7, Block 2, which will be dedicated to the public in accordance 

with Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations Section 4.8, E. An RSID will be 

formed to provide maintenance, repair, and replacement of said community wastewater 

treatment system. Septic systems will be installed meeting the requirements outlined in 

Section 4.9 of the Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations and the MDEQ. 

(Condition #1) The operation and maintenance of the septic system will be the 

responsibility of the County through an RSID.  

 

All private utilities, power, telephone, gas and cable television will be installed in the 

public right of way or easements identified on the plat. 

  



 Page 2 of 5 

c.   Streets and roads – Access to the Subdivision shall be from proposed approaches on 

Danford Road and South 72nd Street West as approved by the Yellowstone County 

Public Works Department. Resource Way, within the subdivision, will be built in 74-

foot-wide right of way and be built with a 34-foot paved surface. Palladium Way will be 

built in 60-foot-wide right of way and be built with a 24-foot paved surface. An RSID 

will be created to maintain the roads within the subdivision. (Condition #2) 

 

This subdivision has frontage on Danford Road and South 72nd Street West. To meet the 

requirements of more than one way in and out there will be one access from South 72nd 

Street West and one from Danford Road. 

 

A TIS has been submitted for this proposed subdivision. After initial review County 

Public works stated that there are some negligible corrections and minor information that 

needs to be addressed by the applicant. No existing road improvements are required for 

this subdivision. In the future should there be more development then this subdivision can 

be assessed proportional cost through the Waiver. 

 

Any required improvements to intersections or possible widening at access points to 

accommodate traffic movement into and out of the subdivision will be completed by the 

applicant. Any item identified in the TIS that needs to be done will be coordinated with 

the applicant and County Public Works. (Condition #5)  

 

d.   Fire and Police services – The property is within the BUFSA boundary. This 

subdivision will be provided fire service from the Billings Fire Department. The 

subdivision will have a dry hydrant tank installed alongside the road Resource Way on 

the edge of the Utility Lot, as shown on the plat. The applicant will submit drawings for 

the tank to the Billings Fire Department for review and approval. When the tank is 

installed the applicant will have the system tested and signed off by the Billings Fire 

Department. (Condition #3) 

 

The Yellowstone County Sheriff’s Department will provide law enforcement services to 

this subdivision.   

  

e.   Solid Waste disposal – The Billings Landfill has capacity for solid waste disposal.  

Solid waste will be collected and disposed of by a private garbage collection company.  

Each lot owner will be responsible for arranging for collection. 

  

f.   Storm water drainage – The storm water drainage will be collected onsite using a 

combination of swales and the natural slope of the land. Proposed storm water drainage 

shall be submitted to the MDEQ for review and approval prior to final plat. All proposed 

stormwater systems shall meet the requirements of Section 4.7 of Yellowstone County 

Subdivision Regulation’s and the requirements of MDEQ. (Condition #1)  

  

g. School facilities – The proposed subdivision is located within Laurel School District. 

Because this is a commercial / industrial subdivision there will be no impact on schools.  

  



 Page 3 of 5 

h. Parks and recreation – This proposed subdivision is not required to provide parkland 

as it is a commercial / industrial subdivision.  

 

i. Postal Service – The applicant will be required to coordinate with the USPS to ensure 

they are providing a safe location for the postal worker to deliver the mail and the 

business owners to retrieve it. (Condition #4) 

 

j. Historic features – No known historic or cultural assets exist on the site. 

 

k.   Phasing of Development - The applicant is not proposing to develop this subdivision 

in phases.  

  

3.  Effects on the natural environment 

The development will use noxious weed control measures to prevent the spread of 

noxious weeds to adjacent developed or agricultural land. As required by County 

Subdivision Regulations Section 4.15 all county subdivisions are required to apply for 

and obtain a weed management plan with the County Weed Department. Any subdivision 

that has an existing Weed Management Plan are required to get an updated Weed 

Management Plan. The weed management plan has been completed and will be 

submitted with final plat. 

  

There are no apparent or known natural hazards on the property. 

  

4.  Effects on wildlife and wildlife habitat 

Impacts on Significant, Important, and Critical Habitat: 

According to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s IPaC (Information for Planning and 

Consultation), there are no critical habitats within the Area of Interest (AOI). Critical 

habitat for listed species is not known to be present on the AOI; however, changing the 

land use could potentially impact some food supply for multiple species of birds.  

 

There are no known endangered or threatened species on the property.  A paragraph in 

the ‘Conditions that Run with the Land’ section of the SIA warns future lot owners of the 

likely presence of wildlife in the area and their potential to damage residential 

landscaping.   

  

5.  Effects on public health and safety 

Plans and designs for the water and septic system will be reviewed and approved by 

MDEQ prior building construction on each lot to ensure public health and safety. 

 

Fire and emergency services are provided for this proposed subdivision from Billings 

Fire Department and the Yellowstone County Sheriff’s department.  

  

B.   Was an environmental assessment required?  If yes, what, if any, significant 

adverse impacts were identified? (76-3-603 MCA) (Chapter 9, YCSR) 

  

A summary of impacts was required for this subdivision pursuant Section 9.2 of the 

County Subdivision Regulations.  



 Page 4 of 5 

 

C.  Does the subdivision conform to the Yellowstone County 2008 Growth Policy, 

the 2018 Urban Area Transportation Plan and the Billings Area Bikeway and Trail 

Master Plan Update? [BMCC 23-302.H.4.] 

 

1. Yellowstone County - 2008 Growth Policy 

The subdivision is consistent with the following goals of the Growth Policy: 

• Goal:  Predictable land use decisions that are consistent with neighborhood 

character and land use patterns.  (p. 6) 

The subdivision is consistent with the type of residential development in the surrounding 

area. Large lots with homes on those lots. 

• Goal:  Controlled weed populations.  (p. 9) 

The developer shall complete a weed management plan and shall provide a re-vegetation 

plan for any ground disturbed by development. 

 

2.  2023 Billings Urban Area Long Range Transportation Plan 

  

The subject property maintains the road study area of the Transportation Plan. As 

proposed, the internal streets are neighborhood streets associated with this subdivision.  

  

3.  Billings Area Bikeway and Trail Master Plan (BABTMP) 

This subdivision is inside the BABTMP boundaries for trails. There are future trails 

shown on South 72nd Street and Danford Road. At a future time when these two roads are 

widened those trails will be installed. This subdivision will not be required to install any 

trails at this time. 

  

D.  Does the subdivision conform to the Montana Subdivision and Platting Act 

(MSPA) and to local subdivision regulations? [MCA 76-3-608 (3) (b) and Section 3.2 

(3) (a) YCSR] 

  

The proposed subdivision meets the requirements of the MSPA and the YCSR.  The 

subdivider and the local government have complied with the subdivision review and 

approval procedures that are set forth by local and state subdivision regulations. 

  

E.  Does the subdivision conform to sanitary requirements? [Section 4.8 (C) and 4.9 

(C), YCSR] 

  

The subdivision must receive approval from the MDEQ prior to any building 

construction on each lot. The new parcels will be connected to the subdivision 

community septic system. This system will be approved by MDEQ before final plat. 

  

F.  Does the proposed subdivision meet any applicable Zoning Requirements? 

 [Section 3.2 (H) (3) (e), YCSR] 

  

The proposed subdivision is outside the County Zoning Jurisdiction.  

 



 Page 5 of 5 

G.  Does the subdivision provide for necessary planned utilities?   [MCA 76-3-608 

(3) (c) and Section 3.2 (H) (3) (b), YCSR] 

  

The applicant will coordinate with private utility companies to provide the required 

easements.  

 

H.  Does the proposed subdivision provide for Legal and Physical Access to all lots?  

[MCA 76-3-608 (3) (d) and Section 3.2 (H) (3) (c) (d), YCSR] 

  

Legal and physical access will be provided from South 72nd Street and Danford Road. 

Access to each lot will be from the internal roads of the subdivision.  

 

CONCLUSIONS OF FINDINGS OF FACT 

• This subdivision does not create adverse impacts that warrant denial of the 

subdivision.  

• Impacts to agriculture, agriculture water user facilities, local services, public 

health and safety, the natural environment, and wildlife should be minimal, and 

can be mitigated by reasonable conditions of final plat approval.   

• The subdivision conforms to some of the goals of the Growth Policy.    

• The applicant has complied with the MSPA and YCSR processes and the 

subdivision conforms to the law requirements. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Board is forwarding a recommendation of conditional approval to the 

Board of County Commissioners for the preliminary plat of Platinum Commercial Park 

Subdivision, approve the variance requests and adopt the Findings of Fact as presented in 

the staff report. 



.

EXISTING 30' COUNTY ROAD EASEMENT

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

2F
M

2FM 2FM 2FM 2FM 2FM 2FM

2FM

2FM 2FM

S
2FM2FM2FM2FM

2F
M

2F
M

2FM

S

S

2F
M

W

EXISTING 60' WIDE
COUNTY ROAD EASEMENT

TO BE DEDICATED AS
RIGHT-OF-WAY

60' R-O-W DEDICATION

EXISTING 30' COUNTY ROAD R-O-W
(COS 1133)

EXISTING 60' ROAD
(COS 1133)

10' WIDE UTILITY
EASEMENT

20' WIDE SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

20' WIDE SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

10' WIDE SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

1' WIDE NO ACCESS STRIP, TYP.

60'

100'

STORMWATER RETENTION EASEMENT

STORMWATER RETENTION EASEMENT

75'
40'

S
O

U
T

H
 
7

2
N

D
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
W

6
8

T
H

 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
W

DANFORD ROAD

UNPLATTED

LT 3, SESW, S30, T

01S, R25E

LOT 1

(COS 1133)

LOT 2

(COS 1133)

LOT 3

(COS 1133)

LOT 4

(COS 1133)

LOT 5

(COS 1133)

LOT 6

(COS 1133)

PARCEL 1

(COS 2301)

LOT 1

LAZY KU SUBD

LOT 12

LAZY KU SUBD

PARKLAND

LAZY KU SUBD

PARCEL 1A

(COS 1646)

UNPLATTED

LOTS 1&2, NENW

S31, T 01S, R25E

PARCEL 1

(COS 3206)

SIGN EASEMENT

SIGN EASEMENT

10' WIDE UTILITY
EASEMENT

~BLOCK 3~

~BLOCK 1~

~BLOCK 2~

Lot: 1
238220 SQ FT
5.469 ACRES

Lot: 3
205468 SQ FT
4.717 ACRES

Lot: 4
247486 SQ FT
5.681 ACRES

Lot: 5
114419 SQ FT
2.627 ACRES

RESOURCE WAY (74' R-O-W)

PROPOSED 30,000 GALLON
DRY FIRE HYDRANT

1207.4'

25
9.

7'

761.5'

94
4.

2'

37
7.

7'

STORMWATER RETENTION EASEMENT 60'

100'

P
A

L
L

A
D

I
U

M
 
W

A
Y

 
(
6

0
'
 
R

-
O

-
W

)

EXISTING 30' COUNTY ROAD EASEMENT

INDIVIDUAL WELL WITH
100' ISOLATION ZONE, TYP.

PROPOSED COMMUNITY DRAINFIELD
WITH 100% REPLACEMENT

TRACT 2

(COS 3861)

1' WIDE NO ACCESS STRIP, TYP.

Lot: 2
205412 SQ FT
4.716 ACRES

Lot: 1
247080 SQ FT
5.672 ACRES

Lot: 3
211087 SQ FT
4.846 ACRES

Lot: 4
119531 SQ FT
2.744 ACRES

Lot: 2
210176 SQ FT
4.825 ACRES

Lot: 1
119530 SQ FT
2.744 ACRES

Lot: 2
174386 SQ FT
4.003 ACRES

Lot: 3
132271 SQ FT
3.037 ACRES

350.00' 351.55' 350.91' 350.97' 512.04'

34
0.

61
'

34
0.

72
'

60
0.

48
'

75.55'

58
7.

13
'

58
6.

97
'

58
6.

81
'

341.58'

33
5.

03
'

25
2.

29
'

212.92'

16
4.

71
'

345.90'

41
7.

00
'

687.48'

32
0.

18
'

350.00'350.00'393.40'

394.23' 350.00' 351.55'

438.44'

30
1.

79
'

34
0.

53
'

30
1.

59
'

73.60'340.97'

33
0.

66
'

33
0.

67
'

340.91'

32
95

3294

3293

3294

3295

3296
3297

3299

3299

3298

3292

3291

3290

3289

3295

32
96

3295

3296
3297

3300

3299

32
98

Utility Lot: 7
157353 SQ FT
3.612 ACRES

Lot: 6
107368 SQ FT
2.465 ACRES

PE
 S

TA
N

D
AR

D
.C

TB
12

/2
7/

20
24

 3
:0

5:
08

 P
M

Z:
\K

E 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n\

20
23

-1
00

 7
2n

d 
An

d 
D

an
fo

rd
 S

ub
d\

C
AD

\D
W

G
\P

la
t\2

3-
10

0 
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
.d

w
g

PRELIMINARY PLAT OF

PLATINUM COMMERCIAL PARK SUBDIVISION
BEING LOCATED ON LOT 4, SE 1/4 SW 1/4 SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 25 EAST,

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA
PREPARED FOR : KE CONSTRUCTION

PREPARED BY : PERFORMANCE ENGINEERING, LLCPREPARED BY : PERFORMANCE ENGINEERING, LLC

SHEET 1 OF 1

2001000

IN FEET

SITE DATA
NUMBER OF LOTS 14

MAXIMUM LOT AREA ± 247,486 SF

MINIMUM LOT AREA ± 107,368 SF

PARKLAND AREA REQUIRED N/A
PARKLAND AREA PROVIDED N/A
LINEAL FEET OF STREET ℄ ± 3,524 LF

NET LOT ACREAGE ± 57.158 AC
GROSS ACREAGE ± 67.311 AC
EXISTING ZONING UNZONED

EXISTING LAND USE AGRICULTURAL
PROPOSED LAND USE COMMERCIAL

SANITARY SEWER COMMUNITY SEPTIC
WATER INDIVIDUAL WATER

FIRE SERVICE AREA BUFSA



 

 1 of 11 12/27/2024 

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS AGREEMENT 

Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision 
Table of Contents 
(Yellowstone County) 

 

I. VARIANCES ...................................................................................................................... 2 
II. CONDITIONS THAT RUN WITH THE LAND ............................................................... 3 

III. TRANSPORTATION ......................................................................................................... 4 
A. Access ........................................................................................................................... 4 

IV. EMERGENCY SERVICE .................................................................................................. 5 

V. STORM DRAINAGE ......................................................................................................... 5 
VI. UTILITIES .......................................................................................................................... 5 

A. Water ............................................................................................................................. 5 

B. Septic System ................................................................................................................ 5 

C. Power, Telephone, Gas, and Cable Television ............................................................. 6 
VII. PARKS/OPEN SPACE ....................................................................................................... 6 
VIII. IRRIGATION ..................................................................................................................... 6 

IX. SOILS/GEOTECHNICAL STUDY ................................................................................... 7 
X. PHASING OF IMPROVEMENTS..................................................................................... 7 

XI. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ........................................................................................... 7 
XII. LEGAL PROVISIONS ....................................................................................................... 7 
 



 

 2 of 11 12/27/2024 

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS AGREEMENT 

Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision 

This agreement is made and entered this _____ day of                                   , 20___, by and 

between Cougar Investments, LLC, a Montana limited liability company, whose address for the 

purpose of this agreement PO Box 81153, Billings, MT 59108, hereinafter referred to as 

“Subdivider,” and YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, Montana, hereinafter referred to as “County.” 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the plat of Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision, located in Yellowstone 

County, Montana, was submitted to the Yellowstone County Board of Planning; and 

WHEREAS, at a regular meeting conducted on _____ day of ____________, 20__, the Board 

of Planning recommended conditional approval of a preliminary plat of Platinum Commercial 

Park Subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, at a regular meeting conducted on _____ day of                                   , 20___, 

the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners conditionally approved a preliminary 

plat of Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvements Agreement is required by the County prior to the 

approval of the final plat. 

WHEREAS, the provisions of this agreement shall be effective and applicable to Platinum 

Commercial Park Subdivision upon the filing of the final plat thereof in the office of the Clerk and 

Recorder of Yellowstone County, Montana. The Subdivision shall comply with all requirements 

of the Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations, the rules, regulations, policies, and 

resolutions of Yellowstone County, and the laws and administrative rules of the State of Montana. 

THEREFORE, THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT, for and in consideration of the 

mutual promises herein contained and for other good and valuable consideration, do hereby agree 

as follows: 

I. VARIANCES 

Subdivider has requested, and the County hereby grants, the following variances by the 

Board of County Commissioners from the strict interpretation of the County’s Subdivision 

Regulations (Chapter 11, Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations): 

1. Variance from the Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations, Section 4.6 Streets 

and Roads, B, 1 is requested to allow for a single connection to the adjacent 

undeveloped property north of Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision, rather than 

multiple connections spaced no more than 600 feet apart.  

a. This variance is sought as Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision is proposed as a 

commercial and industrial use development with large lots, whose traffic 



 

 3 of 11 10/2/2020 

characteristics may vary significantly from future development plans to the north 

which would intermingle residential and commercial/industrial traffic and vehicles 

compromising the potential safety of motorists and residents. In addition, the 

proposed single connection to the adjacent property to the north provides inter-

connectedness between Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision and the adjacent 

property to limit the need to enter Danford Road or South 72nd Street West to access 

the future undeveloped parcel as is intended by this Subdivision Regulation. Based 

on the desired lot sizes and configuration of Platinum Commercial Park 

Subdivision, meeting the connection per 600’ would also necessitate unduly 

splitting lots further (minimum lot width along the northern line is ~350’ with a 

maximum lot width of 518’) to comply with this requirement when large lots are 

desired and proposed. 

2. Variance from the Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations, Section 4.6 Streets 

and Roads, B, 2 is requested to allow for no connection to be made to the existing 68th 

Street West.  

a. This variance is sought as the existing land use of properties on the east side of 68th 

Street West include single family residences whose “land use in incompatible with 

the proposed subdivision” being a commercial/industrial development. This is a 

condition of waiving this requirement per the referenced section of the Subdivision 

Regulations. 

b. Additionally, the portion of 68th Street West that would be able to tied into is a 

roadway tract created with Certificate of Survey No. 1133 (Document Number 

845884). This roadway tract does not appear to have been formally accepted as 

right-of-way by Yellowstone County. 

II. CONDITIONS THAT RUN WITH THE LAND 

A. Lot owners should be aware that this subdivision is being built in close proximity to 

prime deer and antelope habitat and it is likely that homeowners will experience 

problems with damage to landscaped shrubs, flowers, and gardens. The Montana Fish, 

Wildlife, and Parks Department does not provide damage assistance unless there is 

damage to commercial crops and/or a threat to public health and safety. 

B. Lot owners should be aware that soil characteristics within the area of this subdivision, 

as described in the 1972 Yellowstone County Soil Survey, indicate that there could be 

potential limitations for proposed construction on the lots, which may require a 

geotechnical survey prior to construction. 

C. There is attached hereto a Waiver waiving the right to protest the creation of the special 

improvement district or districts which by this reference is expressly incorporated 

herein and made as much a part hereof as though fully and completely set forth herein 

at this point. The Waiver will be filed with the plat, shall run with the land, and shall 

constitute the guarantee by the Subdivider and property owner or owners of the 

developments described herein. Said Waiver is effective upon filing and is not 



 

 4 of 11 10/2/2020 

conditioned by the completion of the conditions set forth in the Agreement. The 

Subdivider and owner specifically agree that they are waiving valuable rights and do 

so voluntarily. 

D. Culverts and associated drainage swales shall not be filled in or altered by the 

Subdivider or subsequent lot owners. 

E. When required by road improvements, all fences and irrigation ditches in the public 

right-of-way adjacent to this subdivision shall be removed or relocated outside of the 

public right-of-way and any relocation outside of the public right-of-way shall be 

subject to securing and recording easements. 

F. Future maintenance of all public (or common) improvements shall be done through one 

(1) or more RSID(s) created as part of the SIA for this subdivision. 

G. Individual lot owners should be aware that Best Management Practices for stormwater 

control shall be required for new construction on lots.  Best Management Practices are 

detailed within the MDEQ Montana Post-Construction Storm Water BMP Design 

Guidance Manual and the MDEQ Storm Water Management During Construction 

Field Guide for Best Management Practices. 

H. No water rights have been transferred to the lot owners. Irrigation ditches that exist on 

the perimeter of this development are for the benefit of other properties. Perimeter 

ditches and drains shall remain in place and shall not be altered by the Subdivider or 

subsequent owners without permission of said adjacent properties. 

III. TRANSPORTATION 

A. Access 

Access to the Subdivision shall be from proposed approaches on Danford Road and 

South 72nd Street West as approved by the Yellowstone County Public Works 

Department. Danford Road and South 72nd Street West are both Yellowstone County 

roadways within 60-foot wide and 120-foot wide road easements, respectively, that will 

be perpetuated with this Subdivision. An RSID will be formed for ongoing 

maintenance, repair, and replacement of internal roadways of the subdivision, 

including Resource Way (74’ right-of-way and 34’ wide asphalt road) and Palladium 

Way (60’ right-of-way and 24’ asphalt road). Public right-of-way for each roadway 

will be dedicated with the platting of the subdivision. 

B. Traffic Control 

Traffic control for the proposed roadway approaches to the Subdivision will be 

implemented as recommended within the Traffic Impact Study (TIS) for the 

Subdivision. Said TIS shall be prepared and paid for by the Subdivider.  



 

 5 of 11 10/2/2020 

IV. EMERGENCY SERVICE 

The Subdivision is located within the Billings Urban Fire Service Area, and as such the 

City of Billings Fire Department currently provides fire protection services for the 

subdivision. 

At a minimum, the following is required: 

• An unobstructed gravel road or gravel road base must be within 150 feet of the furthest 

portion of a building under construction as measured along the approved route. 

• Being a major subdivision and planned commercial use, a 30,000-gallon dry hydrant 

fire tank is required for the subdivision and will be constructed as part of the 

Subdivision public improvements. An RSID will be formed for ongoing maintenance, 

repair, and replacement of said dry hydrant fire tank. 

V. STORM DRAINAGE 

All drainage improvements shall comply with the provisions of the Section 4.7, 

Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations, and a stormwater management plan shall be 

submitted to and approved by the Montana Department of Environmental Quality 

(MDEQ), or its designee. 

VI. UTILITIES 

A. Water 

In accordance with Section 4.9 of the Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations, 

all proposed water systems must obtain Approval by Montana Department of 

Environmental Quality, or its designee. 

Municipal public water service is not available in the subdivision at this time. The 

subdivision will be served by individual wells or alternative water source as approved 

by the Montana Department of Environmental Quality, or its designee. 

Individual lot water supply is the responsibility of the lot owner at the time of 

development. 

B. Septic System 

In accordance with Section 4.8 of the Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations, 

all sanitary sewer systems must obtain approval by the Montana Department of 

Environmental Quality, or its designee.  

Municipal public sanitary sewer service is not available in the subdivision at this time. 

The subdivision will be served by wastewater disposal systems as submitted to and 

approved by Montana Department of Environmental Quality. These systems shall be 



 

 6 of 11 10/2/2020 

located and installed as shown on the site layout approved by Montana Department of 

Environmental Quality, or its designee. 

The Subdivision is proposed to be served by a community wastewater treatment system 

located on Utility Lot 7, Block 3, which will be dedicated to the public in accordance 

with Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations Section 4.8, E. An RSID will be 

formed to provide maintenance, repair, and replacement of said community wastewater 

treatment system. 

C. Power, Telephone, Gas, and Cable Television 

Power, natural gas, telephone, and cable services will be extended into the subdivision 

through utility easements along each lot’s frontage along Resource Way and Palladium 

Way at the time of construction of subdivision roadways. 

VII. PARKS/OPEN SPACE 

Section 76-3-621 (3) (a-e) of the Montana Code Annotated (MCA) provides for when park 

land dedication may not be required. As the Subdivision is proposed as a 

Commercial/Industrial use subdivision (all non-residential), the Yellowstone County 

Subdivision Regulations Section 10.8 and said MCA does not require parkland dedication. 

While the Utility Lot 7, Block 3 is not considered parkland per the Yellowstone County 

Subdivision regulations, this ~3.612 acre piece of land will provide for open space within 

the Subdivision. 

VIII. IRRIGATION 

Subdivider agrees there will be no irrigation water, outside that reviewed and appropriated 

by DNRC in approval of the Subdivision, available to this Subdivision. No irrigation water 

shares shall be transferred to individual lot owners. 

IX. WEED MANAGEMENT 

All noxious weeds on the latest Yellowstone County Noxious Weed List shall be controlled 

on all properties in the subdivision.   

•  A Weed Management Plan must be filed and updated as needed for approval by the 

Yellowstone County Weed Department.  Said weed management plan shall contain the 

noxious weeds being addressed and the plan for the control of those weeds.  All 

associated cost for noxious weed control is the responsibility of the owner of record. 

•  A revegetation plan shall be submitted as part of the management plan.  A seeding 

recommendation can be obtained from the Yellowstone County Weed Department 

pursuant to Section 7-22-2152, MCA.  The Yellowstone County Weed Department 

reserves the right to revise these recommendations based on the required site 

inspection. 



 

 7 of 11 10/2/2020 

X. SOILS/GEOTECHNICAL STUDY 

A geotechnical study is not required by the Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations 

as part of this plat. Lot owners should be aware that soil characteristics within the area of 

this subdivision, as described in the 1972 Yellowstone County Soil Survey, indicate that 

there could be potential limitation for proposed construction on the lots, which may require 

a geotechnical survey prior to construction. 

XI. PHASING OF IMPROVEMENTS 

There are no intended phasing improvements. 

XII. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 

Except as otherwise provided, Subdivider shall install and construct said required 

improvements by private contracts secured by bonds, irrevocable letters of credit, 

sequential development, or any other method that may be acceptable to the Planning Board 

and Board of County Commissioners.  All engineering and legal work in connection with 

such improvements shall be paid by the contracting parties pursuant to said private 

contract, and the improvements shall be designed by and constructed under the supervision 

of a professional engineer competent in civil engineering, licensed in the state of Montana.  

Upon completion of the improvements, the consulting Engineer shall file with the Public 

Works Department, a statement certifying that the improvements have been completed in 

accordance with approved, seal stamped, record drawings, along with all required post-

construction certification per Section 4.6.C. of the Yellowstone County Subdivision 

Regulations..  

XIII. LEGAL PROVISIONS 

A. Subdivider agrees to guarantee all public improvements for a period of one year from 

the date of final acceptance by Yellowstone County. 

B. The owners of the properties involved in this proposed Subdivision by signature 

subscribed herein below agree, consent, and shall be bound by the provisions of this 

Agreement. 

C. The covenants, agreements, and all statements in this Agreement apply to and shall be 

binding on the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of the respective 

parties. 

D. In the event it becomes necessary for either party to this Agreement to retain an attorney 

to enforce any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement or to give any notice 

required herein, then the prevailing party or the party giving notice shall be entitled to 

reasonable attorney fees and costs. 

E. Any amendments or modifications of this Agreement or any provisions herein shall be 

made in writing and executed in the same manner as this original document and shall 

after execution become a part of this Agreement. 



 

 8 of 11 10/2/2020 

F. Subdivider shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, 

ordinances, and administrative regulations during the performance and discharge of its 

obligations. Subdivider acknowledges and agrees that nothing contained herein shall 

relieve or exempt it from such compliance. 

G. Subdivider agrees to create any required (or expansion of existing) RSID(s) for future 

maintenance of all public (or common) constructed improvements prior to final plat 

approval. 

  



 

 9 of 11 10/2/2020 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and official seals on 

the date first above written. 

“SUBDIVIDER”                              Cougar Investments, LLC, a Montana limited liability company 

By:  

Its:  

 

STATE OF MONTANA  ) 

: ss 

County of Yellowstone  ) 

 

On this _____ day of                                   , 20___, before me, a Notary Public in and for 

the State of Montana, personally appeared _______________________________________, 

authorized signatory of Cougar Investments, LLC, a Montana limited liability company, known to 

me to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she 

executed the same. 

  

Notary Public in and for the State of Montana 

Printed Name:   

Residing at:   

My commission expires:   

  



 

 10 of 11 10/2/2020 

This agreement is hereby approved and accepted by Yellowstone County, this ____ day of 

_______________, 20___. 

 

“COUNTY” 

COUNTY OF YELLOWSTONE 

MONTANA 

 

County of Yellowstone 

Board of County Commissioners 

By:   

Chairman 

  

Commissioner 

  

Commissioner 

Attest:   

County Clerk and Recorder 

STATE OF MONTANA ) 

: ss 

County of Yellowstone ) 

On this _____ day of                                   , 20___, before me, a Notary Public in and for 

the State of Montana, personally appeared _____________________________, 

________________________, ________________________, and ________________________, 

known to me to be the Board of County Commissioners and the County Clerk and Recorder, 

respectively, of Yellowstone County, Montana, whose names are subscribed to the foregoing 

instrument in such capacity and acknowledged to me that they executed the same on behalf of 

Yellowstone County, Montana. 

  

Notary Public in and for the State of Montana 

Printed Name:   

Residing at:   

My commission expires:   

 

  



 

 11 of 11 10/2/2020 

Waiver of Right to Protest 

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the undersigned, being the Subdivider and all of 

the owners of the hereinafter described real property, do hereby waive the right to protest the 

formation of one or more Rural Special Improvement Districts (RSID’s), for a period of no more 

than twenty years from the recording of this waiver, which Yellowstone County may require. 

This Waiver and Agreement is independent from all the other agreements and is supported 

by sufficient independent consideration to which the undersigned are parties, and shall run with 

the land and shall be binding upon the undersigned, their successors and assigns, and the same 

shall be recorded in the office of the County Clerk and Recorder of Yellowstone County, Montana. 

The real property hereinabove mentioned is more particularly describe as follows: 

Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision 

Signed and dated this _____ day of                                   , 20___ 

 

“SUBDIVIDER”                              Cougar Investments, LLC, a Montana limited liability company 

By:  

Its:  

 

STATE OF MONTANA  ) 

: ss 

County of Yellowstone  ) 

 

On this _____ day of                                   , 20___, before me, a Notary Public in and for 

the State of Montana, personally appeared _______________________________________, 

authorized signatory of Cougar Investments, LLC, a Montana limited liability company, known to 

me to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she 

executed the same. 

  

Notary Public in and for the State of Montana 

Printed Name:   

Residing at:   

My commission expires:   

 



 Page 1 of 1 

Variance Request  

Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision 

 

 

Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision is a 14-lot major subdivision proposed on the northeast 

corner of 72nd Street West and Danford Road West. As part of the proposed subdivision, a 

variance from the 600’ minimum spacing of connections to adjacent properties is requested in 

relation to the property to the north of the proposed subdivision. 

 

1. The granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or general 

welfare or injurious to other adjoining properties.  

The granting of this variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or general 

welfare or injurious to adjoining properties. A connection to the adjacent property to the north is 

proposed with the subdivision (Palladium Way) which will enable connection to the adjacent 

parcel for residents and owners to utilize to go from one subdivision to the other if desired. As 

the proposed subdivision is intended to be utilized for commercial and industrial uses (will be 

specified in the subdivision CCRs), limiting the number of connections to the adjacent property 

to the north will actually serve to potentially limit having heavy truck and equipment traffic 

intermingling with potentially residential traffic. While it is not guaranteed that the property to 

the north with be residential, the owner of the adjacent property has been met with and also 

desires a limited number of connection (s) for this reason. 

 

2. Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the 

specific property involved, an undue hardship to the owner would result if the strict letter of the 

regulation was enforced.  

As the proposed subdivision is intended to serve commercial and industrial uses, it is desired to 

have large lots to facilitate these uses. With an average lot width of 388’ along the northern 

property line, requiring connections to be spaced a minimum of 600’ feet apart would unduly 

require further splitting of the lots into smaller parcels (goes against the need and intent of the 

subdivision) or place roadway connections between each lot essentially. This would be an undue 

burden on the owner. 

 

3. The variance will not result in an increase in taxpayer burden.  

The variance would not increase taxpayer burden as connection between the subdivision and 

adjacent parcel to the north is still provided, allowing for traffic from one parcel to travel to the 

other without imparting more traffic on 72nd Street West or Danford Road West. 

 

4. The variance will not in any manner place the subdivision in nonconformance with any 

adopted zoning regulations or Growth Policy.  

The subject parcel is outside the zoning boundary of Yellowstone County (property is unzoned). 

 

5. The subdivider must prove that the alternative design is equally effective, and the objectives of 

the improvements are satisfied.  

By providing a singular connection to the property to the north, residents and owners within each 

area can navigate to the other without needing to travel back onto 72nd Street West or Danford 

Road West, which is the primary intent of this requirement. 



 Page 1 of 2 

Attachment A 

 

Staff Analysis and Recommendation 

 

County Planning, County Public Works, and County Legal staff have reviewed the request for a 

variance from Yellowstone County Subdivision Regulations Section 4.6.B.2, of the Yellowstone 

County Subdivision Regulations, which outlines connection to undeveloped/underdeveloped 

land surrounding proposed subdivisions. Also, from Section 4.6.B.1, the maximum distance 

between those connections of 600 feet. 

 

The variance request is for this subdivision to make one connection to the north and not to 

connect to South 68th Street West to the east of the subdivision. South 68th Street West is not a 

developed street. 

 

1. The granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or general 

welfare or injurious to other adjoining properties.  

 

The granting of this variance would not be detrimental to the public health. The reason for the 

requirement to connect to other land is to prevent subdivision islands where main roads between 

subdivisions are the only option available to subsequent subdivisions. The connection to the 

north will provide a connection to the north if that land develops in the future. The connection to 

the east is an undeveloped road, South 68th Street West, and the development is residential. 

Several property owners in the residential development use the undeveloped South 68th Street 

West as a driveway to their homes. In an effort to not have conflict with residential and 

commercial / industrial traffic, this particular road connection is not being proposed. Staff 

believes the requested variances will not be detrimental to the area. Commercial/industrial uses 

have larger lot needs and the requirement to have a connection every 600 feet is more 

appropriate for residential lots with more typical lot sizes under 1 acre.  

 

2. Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the 

specific property involved, an undue hardship to the owner would result if the strict letter of the 

regulation was enforced.  

 

There are no surrounding physical conditions that would result in an undue hardship to the 

developer.  

 

3. The variance will not result in an increase in taxpayer burden.  

 

The variance will not increase taxpayer burden. 

 

4. The variance will not in any manner place the subdivision in nonconformance with any 

adopted zoning regulations or Growth Policy.  

 

Approval of this variance will not place this subdivision in nonconformance of adopted zoning 

regulations or the growth policy. This subdivision is outside of the Yellowstone County Zoned 

area. 



 Page 2 of 2 

 

5. The subdivider must prove that the alternative design is equally effective, and the objectives of 

the improvements are satisfied.  

 

Staff believes what is being proposed by the developer is a solution that works with the proposed 

uses within the new subdivision, commercial/industrial. Multiple connections with such large 

lots being proposed would require the subdivider to re-layout the subdivision and the lots would 

be smaller. Smaller lots may not be the market this developer is aiming for. 

 

 

Therefore, staff is recommending approval of the proposed variances and recommends that the 

Planning Board recommend approval to the Board of County Commissioners.  

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. a.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: Veterans Navigation Network - Request for PILT Funds
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Veterans Navigation Network - Request for PILT Funds

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or Deny 

Attachments
VNN Request 



  
 
 

 

Facilitating Veteran Success in our Community  

 
501(C)(3) 84-3207666 
https://www.veteransnavigation.org 
info@veteransnavigation.org 
https://www.facebook.com/VetNavNet/ 
1-406-435-9308 

Blake Fuhriman 
Founder and Executive Director, 
Veterans Navigation Network 
2173 Overland Ave 
Billings, MT 59102 
February 10, 2025 
 
Subject: Emergency Financial Assistance Funds for Veterans 
 
Mr. John Ostlund 
Mr. Mark Morse 
Mr. Mike Waters 
 
Board of County Commissioners 
Yellowstone County 
316 N. 26th Street, Room 3108 
Billings, MT 59107 
 
Dear Commissioners. 
 
I am writing on behalf of the Veterans Navigation Network (VNN) to respectfully request $10,000 
in funding to support justice-involved veterans and those at-risk of being homeless as they 
navigate critical challenges integrating into society. Through this initiative, VNN aims to provide 
targeted assistance to approximately 6-20 veterans facing crises, offering them the essential 
resources needed to stabilize their lives and integrate successfully into their communities. 
 
The veterans we seek to assist often grapple with immediate barriers to housing, transportation, 
and basic utilities, increasing their risk of recidivism and/or homelessness. Each veteran would 
be eligible for between $500 - $1,500 in financial assistance for these critical expenses, enabling 
them to secure stable housing, maintain utilities, access reliable transportation, and seek 
necessary treatment. With your support, we can provide a lifeline that reduces the likelihood of 
re-incarceration or homelessness and sets these veterans on a path toward stability and self-
sufficiency. 
 
To accomplish this, each veteran receiving aid will benefit from the dedicated support of a VNN 
Resource Navigator. Over the course of six months, our navigators will provide tailored case 
management and mentorship, with a goal that at least 90% of participants will avoid reentering 
the justice system or becoming homeless during this period. By meeting veterans' immediate 



2 

needs and offering consistent follow-up, we not only mitigate the risk of recidivism but also 
contribute to healthier, more resilient communities. 
 
Our approach combines financial assistance with comprehensive support services, addressing 
not only economic challenges but also service-related disabilities, mental health needs, and 
connections to employment and educational resources. We are committed to honoring our 
veterans' service and ensuring they have access to the tools and guidance needed to build 
productive, fulfilling lives. 
 
We appreciate your consideration of this request and would welcome the opportunity to discuss 
how your support can make a transformative impact on the lives of justice-involved veterans. 
Thank you for your commitment to our shared mission of fostering stability and hope among 
those who have served our nation. 
 
Warm regards, 
 
 
Blake Fuhriman  
Founder & Executive Director 
Veterans Navigation Network 
Blake@VeteransNavigation.org 
(406) 698-5448 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosure: Proposal for Emergency Financial Assistance Funds for Veterans 

mailto:Blake@VeteransNavigation.org


  
 
 

 

Facilitating Veteran Success in our Community  

 
501(C)(3) 84-3207666 
https://www.veteransnavigation.org 
info@veteransnavigation.org 
https://www.facebook.com/VetNavNet/ 
1-406-435-9308 

Veterans Navigation Network  

Proposal for Emergency Financial Assistance Funds for Veterans  

The Veterans Navigation Network (VNN) is requesting $10,000 in funding to provide 
essential support to veterans experiencing the need for emergency financial assistance. 
This initiative aims to help approximately 6-20 veterans facing crises, ensuring they have 
the resources needed to stabilize their lives. Through targeted assistance, we can help 
prevent veterans from returning to incarceration or experiencing homelessness by 
addressing their immediate needs for housing, transportation, and basic utilities. 

Each veteran in crisis could receive between $350 - $1,500 to cover critical expenses that 
promote stability and self-sufficiency. This support will allow them to secure safe housing, 
maintain utilities, access transportation, and obtain necessary treatment. By meeting 
these essential needs, we reduce the risk of repeat offenses, giving veterans the stability 
they need to build healthier, more productive lives. Additionally, each veteran receiving 
aid will be supported by a VNN Resource Navigator who will follow their progress for six 
months. Our goal is that 90% of these veterans will avoid reentering the justice system or 
becoming homeless within this period. 

This funding will serve as a critical lifeline for at-risk veterans, helping them overcome the 
immediate challenges that often lead to re-incarceration or homelessness. By providing 
this support and consistent follow-up, we invest in their potential to lead successful, 
independent lives, reducing the burden on the criminal justice system and strengthening 
our communities. 

Purpose: VNN is committed to assisting veterans as they navigate the challenges of re-
entering society after being justice-involved, those who are currently homeless, or those 
at risk of becoming homeless. This policy outlines the criteria and procedures for the 
allocation of financial assistance from VNN to veterans. 

Providing Flexible, Targeted Financial Assistance to At-Risk Veterans: 

1. Facilitating Reintegration and Stability: Veterans leaving the justice system or 
experiencing homelessness often face unique challenges due to past service-
related trauma, mental health issues, or a lack of support networks. Financial 
assistance helps cover essential expenses such as housing, food, and utilities, 
reducing the likelihood of homelessness or financial crisis. 

2. Reducing Recidivism: Financial support can lessen the temptation or necessity 
to engage in criminal behavior for economic survival. By stabilizing veterans' lives, 



2 

this assistance helps decrease their chances of re-offending, promoting safer 
communities and reducing costs associated with repeated incarceration. 

3. Addressing Service-Related Disabilities: Many veterans in the justice system 
struggle with physical injuries or mental health conditions like PTSD or traumatic 
brain injuries (TBI), which can hinder their ability to find employment. Financial 
assistance helps bridge gaps as they seek VA benefits or other support services, 
ensuring they don’t fall into poverty. 

4. Connecting to Resources and Services: Financial assistance programs often 
include or lead to case management, employment resources, mental health 
services, and peer support. This holistic approach helps veterans build sustainable 
paths toward self-sufficiency, improve their quality of life, and reconnect with the 
community. 

5. Recognizing Their Service: Offering financial assistance is a way to honor 
veterans' service and sacrifices. By providing targeted support, society can help 
veterans build stable, productive lives and address the challenges they face upon 
re-entry. 

Eligible Expenses and Verification 

VNN will utilize funding to assist 6-20 veterans with up to $1,500 in emergency financial 
assistance, when none is available through other means (federal VA and local partner 
organizations). Our aim is to support those who don't generally qualify to receive 
assistance from conventional agencies/emergency financial assistance organizations so 
that they can begin to build sustainable paths toward self-sufficiency. 

Assistance will be used for the following expenses: 

• Utility Bills – Gas, Electric, Water 
• Primary phone/service 
• Rent payment 
• Auto loan payment 
• Auto repair 
• Vehicle gas for medical appointments or job interviews 
• Other expenses deemed appropriate by the VNN Executive Director 

Expenses Not Covered: 

• Federal, state, or local tax payments, including property tax payments, past-due 
child support payments, fines/legal fees associated with a civil or criminal offense 

• Credit card bills or bankruptcy payments, luxury goods/services of any kind 
• Cosmetic or investigational medical procedures & expenses 
• Furniture, electronic equipment, or vehicle rentals 
• Any other expenses not determined to be a basic life need 

 



3 

Process 

As part of our intake/screening process, any veteran assisted by VNN must complete an 
intake/screening form, participate in one-on-one resource counseling, case management, 
and, if needed, a peer mentorship program. 

If a veteran needs emergency financial assistance, the process starts at intake. VNN staff 
will assess the need, complete an emergency financial assistance request form, and 
submit it to the VNN Executive Director for consideration. If the request is approved, VNN 
staff will inform the veteran and coordinate payment to the applicable company. Payments 
will be made directly to vendors, and all paperwork, including receipts, will be uploaded 
to the veteran’s case file in our secure case management system. 

Eligibility 

• The applicant must be a Montana service member or a veteran currently residing 
in Montana (subject to verification) who is working to put the justice system or 
homelessness behind them. 

• Veterans cannot have a Dishonorable Discharge (Bad Conduct Discharges 
considered on a case-by-case basis depending on the reason for Court Martial). 

• VNN staff will require documentation, such as billing statements or repair 
estimates, to verify the expense before payment is made. 

Payment 

• Emergency funds will be disbursed directly to the vendor/service provider. 
• Payments will be processed within three business days after verification. 

Assistance Amounts 

• Between $350 - $1,500 per veteran. 

Follow-up and Accountability 

Veterans in the program will be required to participate in the VNN mentor program, which 
includes goal setting and regular follow-ups. The program will track progress in areas 
such as: 

1. Employment and Income Stability: 
o Employment status and salary changes 
o Job training or certification completion 

2. VA Benefits and Compensation: 
o Compensation/pension claim outcomes 
o Enrollment in VA programs 

3. Housing Stability: 
o Housing status and stability 



4 

o Impact of financial assistance on securing housing 
4. Education and Skill Development: 

o Completion of educational programs or certifications 
o Acquisition of new skills 

5. Physical and Mental Health: 
o Ongoing access to healthcare services 
o Mental health and substance use outcomes 

Evaluation 

• Outcome Metrics: Benchmarks for success include: 
o Veteran housed stably after 6 and 12 months 
o Veteran employed after 6 and 12 months 
o Veteran connected to VA healthcare 
o Veteran connected to USDVA compensation or pension (if eligible) 
o Veteran enrolled in a college/trade program or improved employment 
o Veteran does not re-offend within 6 and 12 months 

• Continuous Monitoring: Regular reviews of outcome data ensure that 
assistance programs are meeting intended goals, allowing for adjustments as 
needed. 

By following this policy, VNN can ensure that financial assistance not only provides 
immediate relief but also leads to measurable and sustainable improvements in veterans' 
lives over the long term. 

Please address any questions to: 
Blake Fuhriman, Founder & Executive Director, VNN 
Email: Blake@VeteransNavigation.org  
Phone: (406) 698-5448 

Mike McManus, Program Manager, VNN 
Email: Mike@VeteransNavigation.org  
Phone: (406) 435-9308 

 

mailto:Blake@VeteransNavigation.org
mailto:Mike@VeteransNavigation.org


   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. b.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: MOU Between MHC and YC for Mental Health Center Services at YCDF
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
MOU Between MHC and YC for Mental Health Center Services at YCDF

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or Deny 

Attachments
MOU 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. c.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: MACo Health Care Trust Vision Retiree Coverage
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
MACo Health Care Trust Vision Retiree Coverage

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or Deny 

Attachments
MACo Health Care Trust Vision Retiree Coverage 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. d.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: Board Reappointments
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Reappointment - Pamela Ask & Terry Seiffert to Lockwood TEDD Board

BACKGROUND:
See Attachments

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign and Mail 

Attachments
Pam Ask 
Terry Seiffert 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. e.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: DBA Request for Mental Health Mill Levy Funding 
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
DBA Request for Mental Health Mill Levy Funding 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or Deny 

Attachments
DBA Request for Mental Health Mill Levy Funding 



 

Downtown Billings Alliance – 102 N. 29th St. - Billings, MT 59102 - 406-294-5060 
www.downtownbillings.com  

 
 
February 11, 2025 
 
Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners 
316 N 26th St, #3101 
Billings, MT 59101 
 
Dear Commissioner Morse, Commissioner Ostlund, and Commissioner Waters: 
 
In October of 2024, the Yellowstone County BOCC allocated funds to the Downtown Billings Alliance (DBA) 
for the Motivated Addiction Alternatives Program (MAAP). We would like to formally request that the YCBOCC 
fund the second half of the program funds, in the amount of $37,500, to be paid to the DBA per the original 
allocation agreement.  
 
If funded, the DBA commits to the following: 
 

• Crisis Stabilization: through the Motivated Addiction Alternatives Program (MAAP), and the Homeless 
Outreach Team (HOT is a partnership with Rimrock’s Peer Support program), the DBA identifies 
individuals with a combination of mental illness, substance use disorder, and quality of life misdemeanor 
violations (public urination, open container, trespass, theft).  MAAP and HOT staff make a concerted 
effort to build relationships with these individuals and connect them to treatment and support services as 
an alternative to jail.  MAAP staff also work closely with the Yellowstone County Detention Facility to 
ensure that individuals entering or being discharged from the YCDF who meet MAAP criteria, have 
ongoing support from MAAP and the HOT Team.   

 
• Referrals:  The DBA will work with Crisis Leaders and other stakeholders to ensure that the handoff 

process from the MAAP and HOT teams to other services is working efficiently and appropriately. 
 

• Community Partnership:  The DBA funds three FTE Billings Police Officers who are an essential part 
of the MAAP program.  The Community Resource Director position provides a dedicated contact that 
police officers can transfer individuals to for intentional and consistent follow up.  This essential position 
engages with all county and regional resources available and ensures individuals can access the most 
appropriate help.  While this position has been funded by numerous grants over the years, the DBA seeks 
a more sustainable funding source for this key position through continued inclusion in this Mental Health 
Mill Levy request. 
 

• Data Collection and Reporting: The DBA will continue to collect data using HMIS and will deliver 
quarterly reporting on the successful efforts of the MAAP and HOT programs. Additionally, the DBA 
will collaborate with Billings Police Department to issue and annual Community Impact Statement.  

 
Thank you for the opportunity to partner with Yellowstone County in this important work. We look forward to 
continuing this valuable partnership to serve our community. Please don’t hesitate to reach out with any questions 
or concerns. You can reach me at katy@downtownbillings.com or by calling 406-294-5060. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Katy Schreiner, CEO 
Downtown Billings Alliance 

http://www.downtownbillings.com/
mailto:katy@downtownbillings.com


   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. f.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: YSC DOC Licensing Inspection
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
YSC DOC Licensing Inspection
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or Deny 

Attachments
YSC DOC Licensing Inspection 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: Letter re DocuSign
Submitted By: Steve Williams

TOPIC:
Letter re DocuSign
 

BACKGROUND:
Finance requested a letter be put together regarding DocuSign procedures and reiterating the purchasing
policy limitations for department heads. After bringing the letter to discussion on 2/10, the letter was
modified to specify that the exception regarding Metra contracts pertained to event contracts. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve

Attachments
Attachment (Purchasing Policy) 
Letter re DocuSign 



 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY PURCHASING POLICIES & PROCEDURES 

POLICY 24-127 AMENDING 

POLICY NO. 23-117 

 

Table of Contents 

A. FORWARD/INTRODUCTION .................................................................................. 1 

B. PURCHASE REQUISITION ........................................................................................... 1 

C. PURCHASE ORDER/CLAIM ......................................................................................... 2 

D. CREDIT CARDS .............................................................................................................. 2 

E. CAPITAL EXPENDITURES ........................................................................................... 3 

F. REQUEST TO EXPEND .................................................................................................. 3 

G. TRAVEL REQUEST ........................................................................................................ 4 

H. PETTY CASH ........................................................................................................................ 4 

I. COMMISSIONERS' APPROVAL LIST .......................................................................... 5 

J. RECEIVING AND INSPECTION ................................................................................... 5 

K. DISPOSITION OF ASSETS ............................................................................................ 6 

L. INVITATION FOR BID/REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL .................... ............................ 7 

M. CONTRACT AGREEMENTS .......................................................................................... 8 

N. PRINTED MATERIALS .................................................................................................. 8 

O. BUDGET TRANSFER AUTHORITY ................................................................................ 8 

P. LOCAL PURCHASING…………..…………………………………………………….........8 

Q. COUNTY BRANDING…………………………………………………………….…………9 

R. EFFECTIVE DATE AND APPROVAL ...........................................................................9 

 

 

 

 



1 

 

A. FORWARD/INTRODUCTION 

 

The following Purchasing Policies and Procedures are intended for use as a guide for the 

decentralized purchasing system currently being used by Yellowstone County. When used with 

good judgment and common sense, the information provided will enable the County to obtain 

needed supplies and services efficiently and economically. County employees involved in the 

purchasing process should be familiar with and adhere to the guidelines set forth.  These policies 

and procedures supersede all previous Purchasing Policies and Procedures. 

 

 

B. PURCHASE REQUISITION 

 

The purchase requisition (PR) is the initiating document necessary to set the purchasing or 

payment process in motion. The PR is prepared by each department in the Tyler Infinite Visions 

software. If the PR is for payment of an already received product or service, paperwork verifying 

the expense must be attached, i.e., invoice, packing slip, etc. The purchasing staff of the Finance 

Department will review the PR to assure all required information is correct. If all requirements are 

met, a purchase order number will be assigned. If the PR does not include the required 

information when received in the Finance Department, it will be returned to the originating 

department along with a memo noting the additional information necessary in order to process it 

or corrected if the Finance Department decides that is a better option. 

 

The PR shall include all the following information: 

 

1. Vendor, if known. 

2. Quantity 

3. Invoice or document identification number, if for payment 

4. Abbreviated, accurate description of product or service. 

5. Account number. 

6. Unit price 

7. Freight if applicable 

 

When the Finance Department receives the PR, they will then become accountable for either 

ordering the items needed or processing the PR for payment. In order to do so, however, the 

following signatures are recommended to be on all purchase requisitions. 

 

1. The requestor. 

2. The Elected Official or Department Head, if not# 1. 

3. The Elected Official or Department Head designee as filed in the Finance Department. 

 

All purchase requisitions must have an authorized electronic approval or written manual approval 

on paper documentation. 

 

If the PR is submitted to the Finance Department for payment only, all invoices verifying the 

expense(s) must accompany it. Any discounts available should also be noted on the PR in the 

appropriate place. 



2 
 

C. PURCHASE ORDER/CLAIM 

 

The Purchase order/claim (PO) is basically a legal contract between the vendor and Yellowstone 

County. It authorizes the vendor to supply Yellowstone County with ordered goods or services. 

All purchase order/claims will be signed by the Purchasing Agent or his/her designee. No PO will 

be processed without a properly completed purchase requisition. 

 

After the PO is executed, it will be attached to the PR and delivered to the Auditing Department. 

 

Once Finance has made payment to the vendor and the transaction is complete, the purchase order 

and all accompanying paperwork will be filed in numeric order in the Auditing Department and 

retained for at least as long as records retention statutes require. 

 

 

D. CREDIT CARDS 

 

When possible, County purchases should be made using direct billing by the vendor. 

 

Credit cards are to be requested through the Finance Department who will then seek BOCC 

approval for issuance. 

 

Credit cards follow the same process as normal expenditures. 

 

All credit card statements are required to have supporting documentation. Original itemized 

receipts and invoices must be turned over to the person in charge of the credit cards for that 

department in a timely manner after the date of the transaction or after returning from a trip or 

conference with any additional information to show the public purpose of the purchase. If a 

receipt is lost, the employee is required to prepare a missing receipt form, within five (5) business 

days, that is signed by the employee stating the purpose of the expense. 

 

Each department will assign one person the responsibility of ensuring purchase requisitions 

containing all credit card invoices are turned in to the Finance Department in a timely manner to 

avoid incurring late fees. That person is responsible for ensuring all goods ordered are actually 

received and should not be the one to order the goods. If they are the employee who ordered the 

goods, a separate employee shall receive and inspect any goods purchased. Said person will 

review receipts and ensure that each purchase complies with county policy. 

 

Monthly credit card bills must be paid in full by the department to avoid interest charges. Late 

fees on credit card invoices are detern1ined to be an improper use of taxpayer money and could 

result in an audit comment on our annual financial audit. NOTE - Continued late charges due to a 

department's delays in getting the required paperwork with supporting docs and account coding 

submitted in a timely fashion may lead to the loss of credit card use by that department. 

 

Credit card purchases are allowed for County business expenses only. Cash advances, purchases 

of alcoholic beverages or the purchase of personal items are not allowed under any circumstances. 

If an employee accidentally purchases a personal item on the County credit card, reimbursement 

must be made within five (5) business days. The original receipt must be turned in as proof of 

reimbursement to keep with the credit card purchase order. 



3 
 

 

It is the responsibility of the Elected Official/Department Head or designated person to notify the 

Finance department that a cardholder is ending employment so the credit card can be closed 

immediately. Failure to promptly notify the Finance Department may result in the loss of 

department credit card privileges. 

 

Lost or stolen credit cards must be reported to the Finance department immediately by email. 

 

All Credit Cards are also subject to the policy outlined in section C, "Purchase Order/Claim" and 

section I, 'Receiving and Inspection' below. 

 

 

E. CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

 

Expenditure approval for capital outlay (900 series account) is granted when the budget is 

approved by the Board of County Commissioners, except for the following, which require further 

Commission approval. 

 

1. A change in the type of capital equipment or project that was budgeted. 

2. Any capital purchase that exceeds the capital outlay budget by more than 10%, not to 

exceed $8,000 and that would require a transfer of funds from another line item in the 

budget. 

3. If the capital purchase requires a formal bidding process by State statutes. 

4. Purchases exceeding $80,000, in line with MCA limits. 

5. Purchases of real estate. 

 

The Purchasing Agent will verify budget balance and assist with the purchase. Any computer and 

telecommunications related requests will be forwarded to Information Technology for review. 

 

For building or remodeling projects approved by the Board of County Commissioners undertaken 

by the County as it relates to non-contract issues, the following applies: 

 

1. In cases where an overall budget amount for a project is approved by the Board of 

County Commissioners, any expenditures specifically related to that project in an 

amount of $50,000 or less may be approved by the Finance Director. 

2.  Any change order relating to an approved building or remodeling project in the 

amount of $50,000 or less may be approved by the Finance Director. 

3. Any individual expenditures exceeding $50,000 shall be submitted to the Board of 

County Commissioners for approval. 

 

 

F. REQUEST TO EXPEND 

 

The request to expend (RTE) will be used to verify available budget monies and obtain 

Commissioner's approval, when necessary (see below), for all requests (costing $2,500 or more 

with a useful life of at least one year). The RTE form is available from the Finance Department. 

The request to expend shall be completed by the Elected Official or Department Head requesting 

the equipment and forwarded to the Purchasing Agent with a completed purchase requisition. Per 



4 
 

MCA 18-4-306, if the purchase of goods/services exceeds $10,000, and no competitive bid or 

proposal process is used, a Sole Source Procurement Justification Form acquired from the Finance 

Department will be filled out with the Department's recommendation and turned into Finance to 

accompany the RTE. The Purchasing Agent will then verify that budgeted funds are available for 

the purchase. 

 

For amounts less than $2,500, all departments will utilize purchase requisition (PR) forms only, no 

RTE is required. 

 

Goods or services specifically approved by the Board of County Commissioners during the budget 

process and within the amount specifically approved, in amounts less than $80,000, shall not 

require an RTE or Board approval. 

 

For any goods or services to be coded to the 900 series object codes - capital items – costing $2,500 

or more and for which separate identification and approval was not included in the budget process, 

an RTE shall be submitted to the Board of County Commissioners for consideration and approval 

or denial at a regularly scheduled Board meeting. 

 

Once the RTE is approved, it will then be the Finance Department's responsibility to assist the 

depai1ment with the capital acquisition and process the RTE with the purchase order. 

 

The request to expend shall include the following information: 

 

1. Item requested. 

2. Cost 

3. Any additional cost considerations (trade-in, freight charges, etc.) 

4. Explanation of Purchase 

5. Date RTE is prepared 

6. Elected Official, Department Head or designee signature 

7. Vendor, if known 

8. Fund, Department, Activity and Objective number 

9. Any price quotations or information pertaining to the purchase 

10. Account balance 

11. Purchasing Agent signature 

 

Unless an emergency situation arises, all capital outlay purchases requiring an RTE must be 

approved by the Finance Department, and Board of County Commissioners, when necessary, prior 

to obligating County funds. 

 

 

G. TRAVEL REQUEST (See Policy 09-22) 

 

 

H. PETTY CASH 

 

Petty Cash funds will be used to facilitate the purchase of low-cost items. Purchases allocated 

from petty cash should be limited to $100.00. If expenditures are over this amount, normal 

purchasing procedures should be followed. 

 



5 
 

When a petty cash transaction occurs, a two-part petty cash form should be completed. For those 

departments that have their own petty cash fund, the original copy and sales receipt should be held 

by the requisitioning department until the cash on hand needs replenishment. At this time, the 

original copy of the petty cash form and sales receipt are to be forwarded to Purchasing for 

processing. A warrant to reimburse the department's petty cash fund will then be issued.  The 

second copy of the petty cash form should be filed by the requisitioning department for their 

records. For those departments that do not have their own petty cash fund, the reimbursement 

process can be completed in the Auditor's office. All that is required is the receipt for which 

reimbursement is to be made. 

 

The petty cash forms should contain the following information: 

 

l. Date of purchase. 

2. Amount of purchase. 

3. Description of item purchased.  

4. Department name. 

5. Fund number. 

6. Department number. 

7. Activity number. 

8. Object number. 

9. Elected Official, Department Head or designee signature. 

10. Vendor. 

 

 

I. COMMISSIONERS' APPROVAL LIST 

 

The Auditor's Office will generate a purchase order log used to record the Auditor's and Board of 

County Commissioners' approval on all claims prior to payment. The PO log will contain the 

following information: 

 

l. PO number. 

2. Date PO was issued. 

3. Vendor. 

4. Total dollar amount of PO. 

5. Fund, Department, Activity and Objective number of the department in volved. 

6. Brief description. 

 

Copies of the Purchase Orders will be forwarded with the purchase requisitions, requests to 

expend, travel requests and any additional paperwork to the Auditing Office for examination and 

verification. After verification, the Auditor's Office will forward one PO log to the Board of 

County Commissioners for their approval during a formal board meeting and one PO log to the 

Finance Department for warrants to be printed. After the Board has made final approval, the 

warrants are released. 

 

 

J. RECEIVING AND INSPECTION 

 

Those departments that receive products directly in their department will be responsible for the 



6 
 

receipt, inspection, and acceptance of those items. Inspection and acceptance of products shall not 

be conducted by any department employee involved in the ordering of the products. In no 

circumstance provided for under this section shall the Purchasing Agent serve in a receiving or 

accepting capacity for the County. 

 

Receiving procedures are as follows: 

 

1. When any or all items on the PO have been received, inspected, and accepted, the delivery 

receipt/packing list shall be dated, signed and forwarded to Finance purchasing staff. 

2. When received items are not acceptable, the ordering department should notify the 

purchasing staff of the discrepancy, which will in turn contact the vendor and make 

arrangements to rectify the situation. 

3. When items already accepted are subsequently found to be defective, the using department 

should notify the Purchasing Agent. When doing so, the following information, if 

available, is requested: 

 

a. Name of vendor 

b. PO number originally ordered on 

c. Date defective item received 

d. Nature of defect 

e. Action requested (return for credit, replace, etc.) 

 

4. When items are to be received by or delivered to someone or someplace other than the 

ordering department, such as Central Services, the above procedures shall be modified 

only to the extent that: 

 

a. The receiving department may sign and date the delivery receipt/packing slip and 

forward it to Finance. 

b. The receiving department must notify the ordering department of receipt of the 

order. 

 

In the event an order is received without a packing list, one will have to be completed by the 

receiving department. A blank form for this purpose will be available from purchasing staff. It is 

extremely important that the packing slips are sent to purchasing staff as soon as the items are 

received and checked in. Without this paperwork, a warrant cannot be issued, and the vendor will 

not receive payment. 

 

 

K. DISPOSITION OF ASSETS 

 

Board of County Commissioners' approval is required by state statute to dispose of any asset in 

the County inventory. Any Elected Official or Department Head possessing assets excess to their 

needs are to submit in writing the description, asset tag number, if applicable, value, etc., of the 

asset to the Finance Department. The Finance Department will coordinate disposition by checking 

with other departments for possible use and consolidate a list to the Board to declare excess for 

sale, trade-in, or donation. 

 



7 
 

 

L. INVITATION FOR BID/REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

 

When the estimated cost of products or supplies exceeds the limit established in MCA 7-5-2301 

($80,000 at the time of adoption of this policy), the construction / repair / maintenance cost of a 

construction project exceeds this amount, or the construction of a building, road, or bridge exceeds 

this amount, an Invitation for Bid (IFB) or Request for Proposal (RFP) must be prepared. When 

the estimated cost of architectural/ engineering services exceeds the limit established in MCA 18-

8-212 ($50,000 at the time of adoption of this policy), an Invitation for Bid (IFB) or Request for 

Proposal (RFP) must be prepared. It must contain, but not be limited to, the following information:  

 

1. The date and time the IFB/RFP is to be returned. 

2. The date and time the IFB/RFP is to be opened. 

3. The item(s) to be quoted or proposed. 

4. A complete description and specification sheet for the item(s). This section must contain 

all information necessary for a vendor to make a complete and precise price quotation. 

5. Shipping terms. 

6. An estimated date the item is needed. 

7. Operators/Service and Parts manual, if applicable. 

8. The type and amount of the bid security required. 

9. Any additional information such as pictures, warranties, trade-ins, etc. 

10. Disclaimer. 

11. The signature of the Yellowstone County Commission Chairperson. 

12. The signature of the Yellowstone County Clerk and Recorder. 

13. The address all IFB/RFPs are to be submitted to. 

 

This information will be completed jointly by the requesting department and the Purchasing 

Agent. Specifications should be drafted in such a manner that a minimum of two (2) vendors will 

be able to participate in the procedure. 

 

In addition to the completion of an IFB or RFP, an abbreviated form of each must also be 

published at least once a week for two consecutive weeks in an official newspaper of Yellowstone 

County. It must include the following information: 

 

l. General description. 

2. Bid deposit required. 

3. Location where bid specifications may be secured. 

4. Instructions for return of bid/proposal. 

5. Time and date bids/proposals are to be returned. 

6. Time and date bids/proposals are to be opened. 

 

The Purchasing Agent may also solicit sealed bids from responsible suppliers by sending them a 

copy of the IFB or RFP. 

 

When all IFB's and RFP's have been received, opened, reviewed, and recommended by the 

department head, the Board of County Commissioners shall award the contract to the lowest and 

best responsible bidder in the best interests of Yellowstone County. 

 



8 
 

For a detailed explanation of the Invitation to Bid or Request for Proposal process, please consult 

Volumes 2 and 3 of the Montana Codes Annotated. 

 

 

M. CONTRACT AGREEMENTS 

 

All agreements and contracts (excepting certain MetraPark contracts, and routine operational 

service and maintenance contracts) between any outside person or entity and Yellowstone County 

must be approved by the Board of County Commissioners prior to obligating Yellowstone County 

if any of the following factors exist: 

 

1. The contract is in excess of $20,000, or 

2. The contract's term is in excess of one (1) year, or 

3. The department's budget does not have sufficient funds to purchase the service or item. 

 

The contract will be an official meeting agenda item and an official record of Yellowstone 

County. Furthermore, the Board of County Commissioners reserves the right to review any 

contract per their request. 

 

 

N. PRINTED MATERIALS 

 

Purchase requisitions for printed materials shall be accompanied by a sample form whenever 

possible. If the sample form needs to be returned, please indicate so on the purchase requisition. 

In addition to the standard information requested, an estimated date the forms will be required, 

and a projected yearly usage figure should be noted on the purchase requisition. 

 

If there are changes of either the context or composition of the requested form, the finished proof 

(PMT) of said form shall be initialed by the Elected Official or Department Head as being correct 

prior to printing. When ordering printed materials, please keep in mind that the usual delivery 

time is five to six weeks. The suggested standard for ordering is to request a twelve-month supply 

when you have a three-month supply left. If followed, these guidelines should provide a 

continuous flow of forms necessary for daily operations. 

 

 

O. BUDGET TRANSFER AUTHORITY 

 

In instances where a department has sufficient budget authority within the various line items, the 

Finance Director or other Board of County Commissioners designee may authorize the transfer of 

budget authority, within line-item accounts, the legal budget authority of the fund not to exceed 

$50,000. Such approved budget transfers will be noticed to the Board and the Board Secretary on 

a timely basis for placement to the record and accumulated and delivered to the Board and the 

public in writing as part of the County's mid-year budget and final budget documents. 

 

 

 

 

 



9 
 

 

P. LOCAL PURCHASING 

 

All departments shall make every effort to use local vendors and businesses for all work-related 

purchases, reducing reliance on out-of-county retailers. 

 

 

Q. BRANDING 

 

To maintain consistency and appropriateness in the use of county branding, all departments are required 

to seek approval from the BOCC before creating any county-branded merchandise, including shirts, hats, 

bags, or other items intended for personal use, giveaways, or promotional purposes. In accordance with 

this policy, please submit any proposals for county-branded merchandise to the BOCC for review and 

approval before proceeding with production. This can be done by putting the item on the agenda for one 

of the BOCC’s weekly discussion meetings. 

 

 

R. EFFECTIVE DATE AND APPROVAL 

 
These Purchasing Policies and Procedures are approved by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Yellowstone County, Montana, this 13th day of August, 2024. It is effective August 13th, 2024. 

 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA 

 

 

      

John Ostlund, Chair 

 

 

      

Mark Morse, Member 

       ATTEST: 

 

             

Donald W. Jones, Member    Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder 

  



10 
 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT JUSTIFICATION FORM 

 

Each sole source purchase must satisfy the following requirements: MCA 18-4-306, Sole Source 

Procurement--Records and ARM 2. 5.604. 

• There is only one source for the supply or service item. 

• Only one source is acceptable or suitable for the supply or service item. 

• The supply or service item must be compatible with current supplies or services. 

 

Department   

Location:    

Date:   

Product/Service:    

Manufacturer:    

Estimated Cost of Purchase:   $__________________________________________________________________   

Estimated length  of Contract: (if applicable)     

What evaluation or other product suppliers or service providers was made? (Please 

furnish names, addresses, and other documentation.)  _ 

 

How did you determine that there was only source for the product or services? 

 

 

What product supplier or service provider has your Department used until now to satisfy 

similar requirements?  _ 

 

 

 

 

Department Head  Signature  Date 

Purchasing Agent  Signature  Date 



 

 

Sole Source Procurement Fact Sheet 

 

MCA 18-4-306, Sole Source Procurement--Records and ARM 2. 5.604, Sole Source Procurement 

require that when making sole source purchases, that a "Sole Source Justification" form be completed 

by the requesting Department Head and signed off by the County Purchasing Agent. The form 

should be used on any sole source purchase when the price of goods/services exceeds $10,000.00. 

 

The form has a 4-year retention period, and the form is to be made available for public inspection. 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. a.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: Public Safety Mill Levy Request
Submitted For:  Jennifer Jones, Finance Director  Submitted By: Juli Bjornebo

TOPIC:
Public Safety Mental Health Mill Levy Request

BACKGROUND:
A request was received from Community Crisis Center for public safety mental health mill levy funds.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
Public Safety Mill LEvy Invoice Q3 



Community Crisis Center 704 N 30th St• Billings, MT • 59101• Phone: (406) 259-8800 • Fax: (406) 259-4400 
 

  INVOICE 
Community Crisis Center 
  704 North 30th Street • Billings, MT   59101 
  Phone:  406-259-8800 • Fax: 406-259-4400 
 

 Date: 2/12/2024 
INVOICE # 1110 

 To: Yellowstone County Public 
Safety Mill Levy 

c/o:  Jennifer Jones 

Qty Description Amount 

3rdQTR  Mental Health services and data provided for PSMHML to assist law 
enforcement in community protection, to mitigate the use of jails 
and hospitals for persons suffering with mental health and substance 
use disorders.         

$150,000 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 Total Due: $150,000 

Make checks payable to Community Crisis Center 

 
Thank you! 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. b.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: Finance - Request to Expend - New Phone for Purchasing Agent
Submitted For:  Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Finance - Request to Expend - New Phone for Purchasing Agent

BACKGROUND:
The Finance department is requesting the Commissioners' approval for a cell phone for the Purchasing
Agent. All cell phones with contractual obligations must be approved by the Commissioners. The phone
has no cost and the monthly line fees are approximately $39.99 per month with a two-year agreement.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve request and return a copy to Finance.

Attachments
RTE - Purchasing Agent Cell Phone 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. c.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: IT Dept - Request to Expend - New Phone for IT Assistant Director
Submitted For:  Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
IT Dept - Request to Expend - New Phone for IT Assistant Director

BACKGROUND:
The IT department is requesting the Commissioners' approval for a cell phone for the IT Assistant
Director. All cell phones with contractual obligations must be approved by the Commissioners.
The phone costs $249.99 and the monthly line fees are approximately $39.99 per month with a two-year
agreement.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve request and return a copy to Finance.

Attachments
RTE - IT Assistant Director Cell Phone 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 3. d.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: MetraPark 1st Avenue Entrance - WWC Engineering Letter of Agreement
Submitted For:  Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
MetraPark 1st Avenue Entrance - WWC Engineering Letter of Agreement
 

BACKGROUND:
Please see attached letter of agreement with WWC Engineering to provide planning assistance for the
1st Avenue entrance at MetraPark. Cost of services are not to exceed $20,000. This expense was
anticipated and included on the Metra FY25 Capital List (5811.000.552.460442.930). 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve agreement and return a signed copy to Finance.

Attachments
WWC Letter of Agreement - 1st Ave MetraPark 









   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: Metra Trust Checking Account Disbursement Log
Submitted For:  Kevan Bryan, OMB Director 
Submitted By: Charis Krank, Accounting Assistant

TOPIC:
Metra Trust Check Log for January 2025
 

BACKGROUND:
Metra Trust Check Log for January 2025

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Consent item for MetraPark Trust check register.

Attachments
MP Trust Check Log Jan 2025 















   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: PARS
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - County Attorney - 1 Appointment; District Court - 1
Appointment; Detention Facility - 1 Termination; Sheriff's Office - 1 Termination; Finance - 1 Salary &
Other

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
PARS 













   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. a.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: Payroll Audit
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Payroll Audit - January 16 to January 31, 2025

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
Payroll Audit 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. b.        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: Dick Anderson Construction 
Submitted For:  Tanya McWilliams  Submitted By: Tanya McWilliams

TOPIC:
Dick Anderson Construction Change Order PC-03
 

BACKGROUND:
The contract sum will be decreased by this Change Order to an amount of $4,332.46.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
File Item

Attachments
Dick Anderson Construction 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: Baord Minutes
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Board Minutes - Yellowstone Conservation District
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
Board Minutes 



 

 

YELLOWSTONE CONSERVATION DISTRICT                                                                                                                              
PO Box 80888, Billings MT 59108   1670 48th St. W  Suite 2,  Billings, MT 59106                                                                                                   
Phone: 406.690.9326     email:  livie@mt.gov 

 

 
YELLOWSTONE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

January 14, 2025 
November/December Board Meeting Minutes 
1670 48th St. West Suite #2, Billings MT 59106 

1:00 pm 
 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:   Chad Sedgwick - Chair; Brad Kraft – Vice-Chair, Jackie Haaland,  

Bryan Mothershead, Stacey Robinson  

          

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:     Leroy Gabel 

 

NON-BOARD PRESENT:         LaVerne Ivie - YCD; Crystal White – YCD/PF; Mike Waters, Yellowstone Co. Commissioner 

     Christine Schweigert – DNRC;  Ronni Tallerico – Yellowstone County Floodplain;  

     Zoe Craft, NRCS;  Michelle Yeager, Jack Bernhardt – DNRC;  

     Shannon Blackburn & Demi Blythe – FWP; Anthony Sammartano – Yellowstone Co. Extension 

                  Jill Hickson – Yellowstone River Parks Assoc.; Don Sasse 

      Virtually:  Seanna Torske – NRCS; Veronica Grigaltchik, DNRC 

                       Francisco Gamboa Herrera – Yellowstone Co. Extension 

                                                   310 applicants:  Joy Stevens & Jens Selvey 

                   

                                                                                                                                                                

Chair Sedgwick called the meeting to order at 1:05 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 

After introductions, Chair Sedgwick informed attendees:  All issues will be addressed to the Chair; public comments are always  

welcome but ask that you wait until the issue is addressed on the agenda, ask to be recognized by the chair, and then limit comments 

to 3 minutes; no action will be taken on any item, not on the agenda. Attendees were reminded to sign the attendance sheet.  

     

Agenda Changes:  None 

 

Oath of Office:  YCD Board Supervisors recited and signed the Oath of Office administered by Christine Schweigert, DNRC & 

Notary Public.  The affidavits will be provided to Yellowstone County Clerk and Recorder. 

 

Election of 2025 YCD Board Officers:  Mothershead made a motion to retain the same slate of officers for 2025 as in 2024,, 

second by Robinson, motion passed. 

 

Minutes:  Robinson made a motion to approve the November 20, 2024 Minutes as written and reviewed, second by Haaland, 

motion passed.  Robinson made a motion to approve the December 23, 2024 Conference Call Minutes as printed, second by 

Haaland, motion passed. 

Board member absences: Kraft made a motion to approve Leroy Gabel’s absence from today’s meeting, second by Mothershead, 

motion passed. 

 

310’s  

• Applications, Emergencies, Complaints & Violations:   

➢ YE-12-22 Joy Stevens, Alkali Creek – submitted an updated 310 application for the continuing violation 

area.  Steve Williams, Yellowstone County Attorney and YCD’s legal counsel had a last minute conflict thus 

unable to attend today’s meeting.  Board decision:  Kraft made a motion to table the application until the Feb. 



 

 

2025 YCD Board meeting on the grounds legal counsel was unable to attend today, second by Haaland, motion 

passed. 

➢ YE-09-25 – Jim Hein, Yellowstone River riprap maintenance – Supervisors signed this permit today that 

was approved during the 12-23-24 conference call.  

➢ YE-09-25 – Triangle Telephone, multiple locations in the Worden, MT area – Robinson declared all 

horizontal directional boring sites as non- projects because the construction will not impact the immediate 

bed or banks of any perennial flowing streams, second by Mothershead, motion passed. 

➢ YE-10-25 – Edward Skierka, farm ground on his Pompey’s Piller property – not a project because it is a 

considerable distance from the nearest water body. 

➢ YE-11-25 – River Ranch Retreat, HOA, Yellowstone River riprap maintenance – Project description: 

maintenance of existing structure as described by team member Mothershead – repair 25 linear feet on 

existing bank stabilization and stabilize 20’ linear feet of existing ditch to properly tie in the existing bank 

stabilization to prevent the river from taking out an irrigation return ditch.  Some of the sloughed rock riprap 

will be retrieved from the river and utilized in the repairs. Team inspection:  1-3-25; Sedgwick, Haaland, 

Mothershead, Ivie, Blythe, Tallerico and Dena Bolton.  Board decision:  Mothershead made a motion to 

approve as proposed, second by Kraft, motion passed. 

➢ YE-22-24 – Briarwood Golf Course project completion notice – provided before and after pictures of the 

project intake site on the Yellowstone River.  Board accepted as complete. 

 

 Other 310 Issues & Projects 

• Yellowstone River CD Council – no report   

Agency Report 

• YCD Administrator Report – was received prior to meeting.  No questions or concerns raised by Supervisors. 

• Partner Biologist Report – Crystal White – in addition to the report provided prior to the meeting, White provided 

copies of the Prairie Dog workshop flyer that will take place 2-6-25.   

• Army Corps of Engineers – unable to attend 

• Beartooth RC&D – no current report 

• DNRC – Michelle Yeager, Jack Bernhardt – attended meeting but did not provide a report; Conservation District’s 

Bureau report from  Grigaltchik, was emailed to YCD Supervisors prior to meeting.  

• Fish Wildlife and Parks – Demi Blythe & Shannon Blackburn 

- Activity report submitted by Blythe before today’s meeting included meetings and inspections FWP attended, 

personnel updates and an overview of the City of Billings Water Treatment Plant Intake #1 dredging project. 

• NRCS  - Seanna Torske and Zoe Craft – Field office report emailed to supervisors:  

- FY25 EQIP and CSP Applications- We received word from our State Office that program payment limitations 

($450,000 for EQIP and $200,000 for CSP during 2018 Farm Bill), are being waived for the FY2025 signups 

since it is unlikely we’ll have a Farm Bill.  

- FY25 EQIP Applications – Applications have been received for Pivots for Pollinators TIP and Invasive Annual 

Grasses TIP, Community Ag and Rooting for Soil Health. The Billings office is processing 42 applications 

- CSP Applications - NHQ is continuing to push the need for more CSP applications due to our increased funding 

for CSP. We’ll continue to provide outreach on this program..  

- FY25 TIP Proposals – Seanna Torske has been working on TIP proposals for the remaining phases of our Pivot 

for Pollinators TIPs in Big Horn and Yellowstone Counties. Crystal White, our Pheasants Forever Farm Biologist 

in the Billings FO, is working on a “Ranching with Wildlife” TIP for Yellowstone County. The focus is on nonlethal 

methods for managing prairie dogs and other wildlife. These were presented at our area meeting and received 

comments for editing.  

• Yellowstone County 

o Yellowstone County Commissioner – Mike Waters  was present and contributed throughout the meeting.  He 

again thanked the YCD for the opportunity to be a participant on the annual 310 jet boat tour of the 

Yellowstone River.   

o Yellowstone Co. Extension – Francisco Gamboa Herrera and Anthony Sammartano provided a brief report on 

upcoming activities and pesticide classes being offered.  March 15th will be a community seed swap. 

o Yellowstone Co. Floodplain – Ronni Tallerico office update: still working on the Hruschka violation.  Now that 

Miller retire, her plate is full. 

o Yellowstone Co. Weed Department – Joe Lockwood unable to attend but sent the following report: 



 

 

- This year’s salt cedar project treated 128.9 acres this fall. Approximately 500,000 trees were 

sprayed.  All funds from the House Bill grant have been expended were expended last year. 

-  YCD was requested to write a support letter for the Yellowstone County 2025 Salt Cedar grant 

project.  Ivie wrote the letter and Chair Sedgwick read to the board.  Kraft made a motion to sign the 

letter of support and send to the Noxious Weed Trust Fund grant program, second by Robinson, motion 

passed. 

 

BUSINESS MEETING 

• Old Business  

- Gallatin CD Resolution 24-01: Support for Reducing the Use of Neonicotinoids in Montana – the 

resolution was passed as edited at the state convention. 

• New Business 

- Conservation District Day in Helena – Jan. 23rd – Keeping the YCD budget in mind and the cost of traveling 

to Helena, YCD will skip participation in this year’s event. 

- New YCD equipment -Robinson made a motion for YCD to purchase a new cell phone for Ivie, second by 

Haaland, motion passed.  

• T-Report   

o November & December T-Reports:  Mothershead made a motion to accept the November & December Treasurer’s 

Reports as written and reviewed, second by Robinson, motion passed. 

o Travel & Meetings – None 

o Dues and Donations:  

- NILE - Referencing the verbal report the new NILE manager provided to the YCD at the Oct. 1st YCD board 

meeting and how he is planning to tighten up the business structure, the board wanted to revisit the dues 

request.  Commissioner Waters provided an update on the new outdoor arena area on the METRA grounds and 

said the hope is to have construction completed in time for the 2025 MT State Fair.   The NILE will hold its 

annual rodeo in the new arena.  Robinson made a motion for YCD to purchase a corporate reserve membership 

for $500, second to the motion by Mothershead, motion passed. 

• Standing Committee Reports  

• Realtor’s Workshop: Irrigation Districts requirements for new landowners – White sent the power point 

presentation to the Realtor’s Association’s education committee for approval.  The workshop will be offered to 

realtors for two (2) CE credits.  Four (4) irrigation districts and DNRC Water Rights will conduct the 

presentations.  

• Yellowstone Conservation Area (aka West End Reservoirs/City Lakes) – YCD committee members reported 

that revision to the Master Plan is underway.  It should be available for early editing by the end of January. 

 

• Unscheduled Matters – none 

 

• Public comments – none 

 

• Next YCD Board Meeting – The next YCD meeting will be held February 11, 2025 

 

•  Mothershead  motion to adjourn the meeting at 2:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________   

Chad Sedgwick, Chair                                      LaVerne Ivie, YCD Administrator 

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: EMPG - FY24/25 Quarter 2 Reimbursement Request Submitted
Submitted For:  Annemarie Overcast, DES Coordinator 
Submitted By: Annemarie Overcast, DES Coordinator

TOPIC:
EMPG - FY24/25 Quarter 2 Reimbursement Request Submitted
 

BACKGROUND:
Reimbursement request submitted to the state on 2/10/2025.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Note for the Record

Attachments
FY24-25 Q2 Reimbursement Request 
EMPG_FY24-25 Q2 













   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/18/2025  
Title: Response to Audit Findings - February 7, 2025
Submitted By: Amy Mills

TOPIC:
January 15 - January 31 Payroll Audit

BACKGROUND:
na

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
na

Attachments
Audit Findings 






	Agenda
	AI 14526 February Recognition
	AI 14539 Promotion
	AI 14497 Platinum Commercial Park Subdivision - County Major Subdivision Preliminary Plat
	       ATT_Findings of Fact
	       ATT_Proposed Plat
	       ATT_Draft SIA
	       ATT_Variance requests
	       ATT_Attachment A - Staff variance review
	AI 14524 Veterans Navigation Network - Request for PILT Funds
	       ATT_VNN Request
	VNN CL emergency financial assistance v01.30.2025 1708 BF.pdf
	VNN Proposal for Emergency Financial Assistance  v01.30.2025 1745 BF.pdf
	Providing Flexible, Targeted Financial Assistance to At-Risk Veterans:
	Eligible Expenses and Verification
	Expenses Not Covered:
	Process
	Eligibility
	Payment
	Assistance Amounts
	Follow-up and Accountability
	Evaluation


	AI 14525 MOU Between MHC and YC for Mental Health Center Services at YCDF
	       ATT_MOU
	AI 14528 MACo Health Care Trust Vision Retiree Coverage
	       ATT_MACo Health Care Trust Vision Retiree Coverage
	AI 14532 Board Reappointments
	       ATT_Pam Ask
	       ATT_Terry Seiffert
	AI 14533 DBA Request for Mental Health Mill Levy Funding 
	       ATT_DBA Request for Mental Health Mill Levy Funding 
	AI 14546 YSC DOC Licensing Inspection
	       ATT_YSC DOC Licensing Inspection
	AI 14536 Letter re DocuSign
	       ATT_Attachment (Purchasing Policy)
	       ATT_Letter re DocuSign
	AI 14534 Public Safety Mill Levy Request
	       ATT_Public Safety Mill LEvy Invoice Q3
	Amount
	Description
	Qty

	AI 14544 Finance - Request to Expend - New Phone for Purchasing Agent
	       ATT_RTE - Purchasing Agent Cell Phone
	AI 14543 IT Dept - Request to Expend - New Phone for IT Assistant Director
	       ATT_RTE - IT Assistant Director Cell Phone
	AI 14547 MetraPark 1st Avenue Entrance - WWC Engineering Letter of Agreement
	       ATT_WWC Letter of Agreement - 1st Ave MetraPark
	AI 14521 Metra Trust Checking Account Disbursement Log
	       ATT_MP Trust Check Log Jan 2025
	AI 14542 PARS
	       ATT_PARS
	AI 14541 Payroll Audit
	       ATT_Payroll Audit
	AI 14531 Dick Anderson Construction 
	       ATT_Dick Anderson Construction
	AI 14540 Baord Minutes
	       ATT_Board Minutes
	AI 14527 EMPG - FY24/25 Quarter 2 Reimbursement Request Submitted
	       ATT_FY24-25 Q2 Reimbursement Request
	       ATT_EMPG_FY24-25 Q2
	AI 14523 Response to Audit Findings - February 7, 2025
	       ATT_Audit Findings

